
 

_____ 1 03/19/2012 
J. M. 

DESOTO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 

BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
 

JESSIE MEDLIN, PRESIDENT, 2012 PRESIDING 
 

March 19, 2012 
 
 
A.  CALL TO ORDER 

 
The March 19, 2012 meeting of the DeSoto County Board of Supervisors was called to order 
by Supervisor Jessie Medlin, Board President. 

 
Sheriff Bill Rasco of the DeSoto County Sheriff’s Department was present and did open the 
DeSoto County Board of Supervisors meeting in a regular session to hear all business to 
come before the Board.  The following were present: 

  
       Supervisor Jessie Medlin----------------------District 1 
   Supervisor Mark Gardner---------------------District 2   
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------------District 3  
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------------District 4  

   Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------------District 5    
   W. E. Sluggo Davis----------------------------Chancery Clerk 
   Michael Garriga---------------------------------County Administrator 
   Tony Nowak ------------------------------------Board Attorney 
   Sheriff Bill Rasco-------------------------------Sheriff 
 
 

B.  INVOCATION 
 

Deputy Carl Hurt presented the invocation. 
 

 
C.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
D.  CITIZEN REMARKS 
 

Supervisor Jessie Medlin asked if there was anyone present in the audience who wished to 
address the Board of Supervisors regarding an item not listed on the Agenda. 
 
No one came forward. 
 
  

E.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 
 

Supervisor Jessie Medlin asked if there were additions or deletions to the Agenda as 
presented.  
 
1.) County Administrator Michael Garriga said information needed to be presented to the 
Board regarding the lawn care services agreement. 
 
2.) Supervisor Lee Caldwell requested adding the review of the potential for a water well 
located at the DeSoto County Animal Shelter. 
 
3.) Supervisor Lee Caldwell requested adding discussion regarding the proposed 
Transportation Bill currently before Congress. 
 
4.) Chief Financial Officer Tom Arnold presented a late bill to the Supreme Court of 
Mississippi for an appeal through the Circuit Court and requested adding it to the Agenda.  



 

_____ 2 03/19/2012 
J. M. 

 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Mark Gardner to approve the 
invoice from the Supreme Court of Mississippi for a notice of appeal connected to case 
number 2012-TS-355tyled Ralph Chapman versus State of Mississippi and to authorize the 
Clerk to write the check for $100.  The motion passed by a vote as follows:   
        
           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 

      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 

5.)  Supervisor Jessie Medlin requested to add a discussion of the Attorney General’s 
Opinion regarding driveway and culvert maintenance. 
 
The Board of Supervisors discussed their ability to work on road issues where driveways are 
disturbed.  Board Attorney Tony Nowak explained that the Board can take whatever action is 
necessary to protect the replacement culvert when one is installed to protect the County 
roads.  He said generally this would involve putting down the necessary gravel, sand, 
crushed limestone or other materials necessary to properly install and secure the culvert.  He 
noted there may be rare times when culvert replacements might include topping with 
concrete or asphalt but that would require findings of fact to justify.  He said generally the 
County cannot replace driveway surfaces when work is done installing a culvert.  Mr. Nowak 
explained that, as long as the primary benefit is to protect the road, the County can do the 
work, but if you go beyond the primary protection of the roadway, the work cannot be done.  
Mr. Nowak noted that this applies to situations where the culvert is in the County road right 
of way and distinguished such situations from those where the County may go off the right of 
way onto a landowner’s private property.  
 
Supervisor Harvey Lee asked if the homeowners understand that their driveway cannot be 
covered with asphalt or concrete.  The Board discussed what the homeowners may not know 
that. 
 
Mr. Nowak said the primary benefit must be to protect the County’s road. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Mark Gardner second to approve 
the additions to the Agenda as presented.  The motion passed by a vote as follows:  
         
           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 

      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 

 
See Exhibit E 
 
 

F.  CONSENT  
 
The Board of Supervisors considered the items on the Consent Agenda. 
 
Supervisor Mark Gardner said the MOU with the City of Hernando for work on Sidewinder 
Road had previously been approved.  County Administrator Michael Garriga said the 
purpose of this being on the Agenda, is to establish the fully executed document as part of 
the official record and make a part of the Board’s minutes. 
 
Supervisor Mark Gardner made the motion and Supervisor Harvey Lee seconded the motion 
to approve the Consent Agenda as follows: 
 
1. Office of Finance & Accounting 

 



 

_____ 3 03/19/2012 
J. M. 

a. Budget Amendments 
 

b. Request for Transfer of Sheriff Seized Funds 
 

Case #    Defendant                          Date Seized  Receipt #  Amount  Date of Forfeiture  
2012-5181  Kinyarda Tillmon  1/29/12        25891        $385.00  3/19/12    
 
Transfer from Sheriff-Seized Fund  (123-000-139) $385.00 
Transfer to Sheriff-Forfeiture Fund  (120-000-238)     $385.00     
 
c. Inventory Control Dispositions 
 

1.) Environmental Services 
 

ASSET # DESCRIPTION SERIAL # REASON FOR DISPOSAL LOCATION AT PRELIMINARY

PRELIMINARY 

APPROVAL 

DATE

DISPOSED OF 

BY

LOCATION OF 

FINAL 

DISPOSAL

30852
PROMO CAMCORDER 

W/TRIPOD
1018425

OBSOLETE/OUTDATE

D
INVENTORY CONTROL 3/5/2012 RL

CREATIVE 

RECYCLING  
 

2.) Road Department 
 

ASSET # DESCRIPTION SERIAL # REASON FOR DISPOSAL LOCATION AT PRELIMINARY

PRELIMINARY 

APPROVAL 

DATE

DISPOSED OF 

BY

LOCATION OF 

FINAL 

DISPOSAL

DATE OF 

FINAL 

APPROVAL

32349 FRTLNR BOOM TRK #144 1FVABUAK94DM18341 SURPLUS ROAD DEPT 8/1/2011 JC GOVDEALS.COM

33705 FRTLNR BOOM TRK #145 1FVABVAKX4HN04282 SURPLUS ROAD DEPT 8/1/2011 ****** UNIT DID NOT SELL *******

35854 INTRNL BOOM TRK #149 1HTNNAAR97H395447 SURPLUS ROAD DEPT 8/1/2011 ****** UNIT DID NOT SELL *******

35882 CAT WHEEL‐LOADER #690 CAT0930GVTWR01721 SURPLUS ROAD DEPT 8/1/2011 JC GOVDEALS.COM  
 

2.  Environmental Services:  Accept proposed Yearly Pricing Increase for Disposal at 
Railroad Avenue Rubbish Pit  

 
3. Establish as Part of the Formal Record and Enter into the Minutes 

 
a. MOU with City of Hernando – Sidewinder & Pleasant Hill Roads 
 
b. Information Technology:  CivicPlus 

 
4. Road Department:  Monthly Safety Report  

 
5. Chancery Clerk Allowance (1) - $2,066.66 

   
The motion passed by a vote as follows:           
           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 

      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 

 
See Exhibit F 

 
 

G.  OLD BUSINESS   
 

1. Board Attorney 
 
a. Consideration of Resolution Supporting Local and Private Legislation for Radar 
Use by Sheriff’s Department 

 
(1.) Resolution of Support 
(2.) Draft Legislation 
(3.) Travel Authorization for Supervisor Mark Gardner to Jackson, MS  

Board Attorney Tony Nowak presented draft legislation and a supporting resolution 
requesting approval of the legislation in connection with proposed local private legislation 
to allow the DeSoto County Sheriff’s Department to use radar.   



 

_____ 4 03/19/2012 
J. M. 

 
Supervisor Mark Gardner said most of the other legislation on the subject of radar had 
either died in committee or on the floor of the House of Representatives.   
 
Supervisor Mark Gardner requested approval to travel to Jackson to talk about radar. 
 
Sheriff Bill Rasco said his department works with the Highway Patrol when they are 
short-handed and cannot get to an accident.  Sheriff Rasco said a lot of people oppose the 
use of radar.  This effort is meant to decrease juvenile deaths in DeSoto County. 
 
Supervisor Gardner said he has heard remarks that this effort is for an additional revenue 
stream.  He said his response to those remarks is that the County has not even looked into 
the potential revenue that might be generated by the use of radar.  Supervisor Gardner said 
this is a safety issue. 
 
Sheriff Rasco said his department would not have every officer using radar.  There would 
be radar in places where they have received complaints about people speeding.   
 
Supervisor Harvey Lee said he has received a lot of calls about radar, but most people say 
they would like Sheriff’s Department to have authority to use radar.  Supervisor Lee said 
he has seen a lot of speeders throughout the County, including a lot of adults.   
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Lee Caldwell seconded the 
motion to approve the presented resolution supporting local and private legislation for the 
use of radar by the Sheriff’s Department; to approve the draft legislation for local and 
private legislation for consideration by the Mississippi Legislature allowing Sheriff’s 
Department personnel to use radar, and to authorize Supervisor Mark Gardner to travel to 
Jackson, MS between the days of March 27 – March 29, to meet with Legislators about 
the legislation concerning the use of radar in DeSoto County and to authorize paying all 
travel expenses associated with the trip, including fuel, meals, hotel and other expenses.  
The motion passed by a vote as follows:           

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 

Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES  
 

See Exhibit G.1.a    
 

b. Consideration of Terminating Road Damage Bond with Martin Marietta Materials, 
Inc. 
 
Board Attorney Tony Nowak said at the last meeting the Board was concerned about a road 
bond termination by Martin Marietta Materials, Inc.  Mr. Nowak said Martin Marietta sold 
their operation to LaFarge and they are willing to become part of the contract for road 
bonding.  He said he has prepared an addendum to the contract to add LaFarge and remove 
Martin Marietta.  Mr. Nowak said both Martin Marietta and LaFarge have approved the 
agreement.  He said Vulcan is the other party and they are working with their legal 
department as well.  Mr. Nowak asked the Board to considering approving the addendum 
to the agreement in substantial form.  He said a new bond would be posted within seven 
days of final execution. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Lee Caldwell seconded the 
motion to approve an addendum to the contract between Martin Marietta Materials, Inc. 
and Vulcan Construction for road maintenance on Graves Road, Ciba Road, and that .6 
mile portion of Old Highway 61 that connects Graves Road and Ciba Road in DeSoto 
County, MS so as to add LaFarge as a party.  The motion passed by a vote as follows:  
              Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner--------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell-----------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell---------------YES 



 

_____ 5 03/19/2012 
J. M. 

  Supervisor Harvey Lee-----------------YES  
 
See Exhibit G.1.b 

 
c. Villages of Hawks Crossing – Letter of Agreement with CB & S Bank 
 
Board Attorney Tony Nowak said this property is near Hawks Crossing Subdivision.  He 
said the developers did work on County property by mistake earlier in the development, 
which created a detention pond.  They removed dirt from County property.  Mr. Nowak 
said they agreed to make improvements to the County property to create a park to offset the 
damage done to the County property.  Since that time, the developer has gone out of 
business.  Mr. Nowak said CB & S Bank took over the development.  He said the bank 
worked on expanding the detention pond, but that work was not on the County property.  
This resulted in having part of the detention pond on County property and partly on the 
developer’s property.  CB&S has agreed to donate that portion of the detention pond on 
their property to the County so the pond will all be County owned.  They will also 
complete the necessary improvements to the pond as was required by the original 
developer.  Further, Mr. Nowak said CB&S will be posting a $25,000 bond to ensure the 
work is completed. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin asked if the improvements looked good on the site.  County 
Engineer Andy Swims said they need to address some erosion issues and do grading, but 
otherwise, the work looks very good.  He said the weather prevented them completing the 
work. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Harvey Lee seconded the 
motion to approve the letter of agreement with CB & S Bank in connection to property 
located at and near the Villages of Hawks Crossing and authorize the Board President to 
sign the agreement and approving all terms and conditions as detailed in Exhibit G.1.c.  
The motion passed by a vote as follows:         

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner--------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell-----------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell---------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee-----------------YES 
 
See Exhibit G.1.c 
 
 

H.   NEW BUSINESS    
 

1.  Advertising County Resources:  North Mississippi Senior Expo 
 

Susan East, organizer of the North Mississippi Senior Expo, appeared before the Board 
of Supervisors.  Ms. East thanked them for their past support of the North Mississippi 
Senior Expo.  She said this is the seventh year for the Expo and it has been a huge 
success.  Last year, there were 78 vendors with 800+ attendees.  Ms. East said she is 
asking for help from the Board of Supervisors once again with the project.  Ms. East said 
she has attended several Senior Expos this year and is very proud of the DeSoto County’s 
event.     
 
Supervisor Mark Gardner said he attended last year’s Senior Expo and it was a very good 
program. 
 
Supervisor Lee Caldwell asked if the County’s money goes toward advertising.  Ms. East 
said yes.  It goes toward newspaper advertising and a commercial.   
 
Supervisor Caldwell asked Ms. East if she had connected with the Social Services 
Coalition.  Ms. East said she had not connected with them.  Supervisor Caldwell said it is 
a good organization and Ms. East said she welcomed their involvement. 
 



 

_____ 6 03/19/2012 
J. M. 

Supervisor Jessie Medlin thanked Ms. East for her efforts in putting this event together 
every year.  He said it helps our older population.  Supervisor Medlin verified that buses 
would be available to transport people on the day of the event. 
 
After having determined that the request to advertise county resources for the North 
Mississippi Senior Expo met the guidelines of the policy adopted by the Board of 
Supervisors, Supervisor Lee Caldwell made the motion and Supervisor Mark Gardner 
seconded the motion to advertise DeSoto County Resources by contributing $1,000.00 
from Advertising County Resources to the Lifestyle Transitions to for the 7th annual 
North Mississippi Senior Expo being held on May 4, 2012, from 9:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. at 
the Southaven Arena; in accordance with Section 17-3-3, of the Mississippi Code of 
1972, the Board of Supervisors did make a determination that the above request would 
advertise the resources and possibilities of DeSoto County and thereby advance the 
moral, financial and other interests of DeSoto County and by bringing in participants 
from surrounding counties into DeSoto County.  The Board of Supervisors noted 
advertising in the newspapers, the radio and other advertisements would advertise the 
resources and opportunities in DeSoto County according to the approved policy.  The 
motion passed by a vote as follows:         

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner--------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell-----------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell---------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee-----------------YES 
See Exhibit H.1 
 
 

2.  Impact Missions Funding Request:  $45,000 Remaining Balance on Yearly 
Allocation 

 
Dr. David Donaldson of Impact Missions appeared before the Board of Supervisors to 
ask for the remaining $45,000.00 from the FY 2012 budget.  
 
Dr. Donaldson said Impact Missions recently hired a full time grant writer to locate and 
utilize other sources for funding to operate the Emergency Shelter.  He said the past two 
years they have received the County funding in October or November.  This year, they 
got a portion of the budget at that time and the rest they received monthly.  He said with 
three payrolls in March, it would be helpful to get this money.  Dr. Donaldson said the 
state recently implemented additional requirements that must be met by the Shelter.  He 
said the Oxford Shelter closed, and to his knowledge, the only other shelter in operation 
is located in Tupelo. 
 
Supervisor Mark Gardner asked Dr. Donaldson if he had talked to other counties and the 
Community Foundation about assistance in funding the Shelter.  Dr. Donaldson said he 
did talk to other counties, but not the Community Foundation.  Some counties are 
beginning to support the Shelter.  He said a grant request for a van for the Shelter was 
turned down from the Community Foundation. 
 
Dr. Donaldson said Impact Missions has made a lot of progress in the last ten years.   
 
Supervisor Mark Gardner and Supervisor Lee Caldwell urged Dr. Donaldson to contact 
other counties for support. 
 
Supervisor Caldwell said we talked about how to get the word out to the community 
about the needs of Impact Missions.  She asked if they could provide a list to publicize 
the needs at the Shelter.  Supervisor Caldwell also asked if Dr. Donaldson had talked to 
the Social Services Coalition.  Dr. Donaldson said no.  Supervisor Caldwell said she 
would email that contact information to Dr. Donaldson. 
 
County Administrator Michael Garriga said the remaining balance of the yearly 
allocation within the General Fund Budget for the Impact Missions Emergency Shelter is 
$45,000.00. 



 

_____ 7 03/19/2012 
J. M. 

 
Supervisor Mark Gardner made the motion and Supervisor Lee Caldwell seconded the 
motion to disburse $45,000.00 to Impact Missions as the remainder of their FY 2012 
budget.  The motion passed by a vote as follows: 
         

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner--------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell-----------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell---------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee-----------------YES 
 
 

3.  Public Hearing 10:00 a.m. – Hazard Mitigation Plan 
 

Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Mark Gardner seconded the 
motion to open the Public Hearing for the Hazardous Mitigation Plan.  The motion 
passed by a vote as follows:         

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner--------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell-----------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell---------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee-----------------YES 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin asked if there was anyone present in the audience who wished 
to speak to the Board about the Hazardous Mitigation Plan.  No one came forward. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Mark Gardner seconded the 
motion to close the Public Hearing for the Hazardous Mitigation Plan.  The motion 
passed by a vote as follows:         

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner--------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell-----------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell---------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee-----------------YES 
 
Supervisor Lee Caldwell made the motion and Supervisor Harvey Lee seconded the 
motion to approve a resolution for the Hazardous Plan update for 2012, adopt the 
Hazardous Mitigation Plan and authorize the Board President to sign all documents and 
to make it part of the minutes.  The motion passed by a vote as follows:   
      

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner--------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell-----------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell---------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee-----------------YES 
 
See Exhibit H.3 
  
 

4.  Office of Facilities Management 
 

a. Project Updates 
 
(1.) Jail Construction Update 
 
County Administrator Michael Garriga introduced Assistant Facilities Management 
Director Tony Martin, Chief Building Inspector Randy Williams and Don Hutcherson of 
Flintco Construction and said they were appearing before the Board of Supervisors to 
present an update on the construction of the new DeSoto County Jail.  Mr. Garriga said 
the jail construction is on schedule and construction is going very well according to 
reports. 



 

_____ 8 03/19/2012 
J. M. 

 
Mr. Hutcherson said he is the Operations Manager of Flintco and is over safety and 
quality.  He said there have been no accidents on the jail construction site.  Mr. 
Hutcherson said, to date, they have worked 7,500 man hours on the jail.  He invited the 
Board of Supervisors to attend the next safety luncheon where they award the employees 
for their efforts with safety on the job. 
 
Mr. Hutcherson said there were 38 adverse weather days through the end of February and 
the project is proceeding ahead of schedule. 
 
Supervisor Mark Gardner said, at the last meeting, the Board approved repairing the 
Industrial Drive West extension road accessing the jail, and asked if maintenance had 
been provided.  
 
Mr. Garriga replied, yes, the DeSoto County Road Department has provided maintenance 
and will continue to provide ongoing maintenance through the duration of construction.  
 
Supervisor Lee Caldwell and Supervisor Mark Gardner both said they would like a site 
visit periodically. 
 
Supervisor Gardner discussed the capacity of the new jail during Phase I of the 
development.  He asked if there were plans to move forward with Phase II.  Mr. 
Hutcherson said his company has not been asked to do an estimate nor has he seen plans 
or specifications for Phase II of the project. 
 
Mr. Garriga said there is a long term facilities plan related to the new jail and future 
phases. The next phase could be significantly less than the current phase because all of 
the basic services areas such as kitchen, medical facilities, and laundry are part of the 
current phase and would only need expanding as additional pods were built. 
 
Supervisor Gardner said it would be less expensive to operate one jail rather than two 
jails. 
 
Supervisor Caldwell said perhaps the Board should continue to look at it’s debt structure 
to see if there is a way to realign some debt to help offset the costs of additional 
construction for future phases of the long range jail plan.  She said it might be costly up 
front, but could save money in the end. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin asked how many employees are working on the jail project 
during peak times.  Mr. Hutchinson said between 80 and 100 people are working during 
peak times. 
 
Chief Building Inspector Randy Williams presented pictures of the jail construction in 
different stages and areas.  Mr. Williams said the construction is going very well.  He 
said they sometimes have two or three inspections per week.   
 
Supervisor Gardner asked if this building would meet green standards as far as being 
energy efficient.  Assistant Director of Facilities Tony Martin said everything in the new 
jail would be energy efficient, but not LEED certified.  Mr. Martin said there is low 
wattage lighting as well as sky lighting.  He said the HVAC unit, hot water heaters and 
other equipment is the most current and most efficient there is today. Mr. Garriga said all 
of the controls at the jail are provided by Siemens so the jail climate and temperature 
ranges would still be centrally controlled by Facilities Management.  He said adding a 
chiller plant like the one currently under construction at the Courthouse and 
Administration Building was not cost effective, but could be as future additions are 
added.   
 
Supervisor Harvey Lee said he has visited the new jail several times and the County 
inspectors and Flintco construction workers are working very hard.  Supervisor Lee said 
he would like to pat them on the back for doing a really good job.  Supervisor Lee said he 
would like to continue visiting the site throughout construction. 



 

_____ 9 03/19/2012 
J. M. 

 
Mr. Hutcherson presented a construction time line and other construction related 
information for the Board of Supervisors for their review. 
 
No motions were made nor votes taken on this item. 
 
See Exhibit H.4.a.(1) 
 
(2.) Energy Efficiency Project Update 

 
County Administrator Michael Garriga introduced Senior Account Manager Chris 
McNeil, Project Manager Cory Carr and Operations Manager Robert Myatt of Siemens 
Industries.  Mr. Garriga said they were there to update the Board of Supervisors on the 
energy efficiency project for DeSoto County buildings. 
 
Mr. McNeil said he wanted to talk about why there is no chilled water plant for the new 
jail.  He said the size of the new jail does not justify the cost of a chiller plant.  A larger 
size facility is more justifiable.  Mr. McNeil said the new jail would be very energy 
efficient based on his review of the plans.  He said when new phases are added to the jail 
in the future, a chiller plant may be justified and financially feasible.   
 
Mr. McNeil said a significant amount of progress has been completed on the County’s 
energy efficiency project.  He said it included water fixture upgrades, temperature 
controls, lighting upgrades and the construction of the chilled water plant.  A preliminary 
report illustrates the completed upgrades have saved the County approximately 
$40,000.00.  
 
Mr. McNeil said the County has 19 outlying buildings and they have completed more 
than 5,000 lighting retrofits.  The water and lighting upgrades were funded with grants at 
100%.  
 
Mr. McNeil said the chilled water plant is the biggest portion of the project. He said the 
Courthouse, the Administration Building, and the County Jail will be served by the 
chiller plant.  Mr. McNeil said most of the installation of the piping from the chiller plant 
to the roofs of the buildings, has been completed.  He said the cost to cool the buildings 
would be cut in half.  The life cycle of the chiller could be anywhere from 30-40 years.  
A traditional air conditioning unit life expectancy is about 10-15 years.  Mr. McNeil said 
they are looking at a two month window for full completion and conversion for the 
project.  Conversion of the Administration Building and the Courthouse will be between 
April 18 and May 1.  Mr. McNeil said the Courthouse is getting the new system the week 
of May which will solve the control problems.  The new controls will be programmed 
during the month of May.   
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin asked if there would be times when buildings had no air 
conditioning.  Mr. McNeil said yes, there will be about a two week or two and one half 
week period when there will be some discomfort in offices.  He explained that they 
would change out one unit at a time.  Mr. McNeil said they will coordinate with the 
County staff very closely and communicate the times and dates and make sure everyone 
understands what is taking place and that it is temporary.   
 
Mr. McNeil said this project has gotten a lot of positive publicity and has been brought 
up in several press releases through the National Association of Counties (NACo).  He 
said NACo is advertising this as a model energy efficiency project. 
Supervisor Harvey Lee asked about the heating systems throughout the buildings.  Mr. 
McNeil said the only change is the Courthouse system.  The install of new boilers will 
occur and allow individual heat controls per each established zone. 
 
Supervisor Lee asked if the system would pull in outside air during the change of 
seasons. Mr. McNeil said some systems do have motorized dampers, but this system does 
not.  It can be added later if necessary. 
 



 

_____ 10 03/19/2012 
J. M. 

Supervisor Lee Caldwell asked if this project included the Animal Shelter.  Mr. McNeil 
said the changes at the Animal Shelter included aerated water flow and it minimized the 
water flow and water usage. 
 
No motions were made nor votes on this item. 
 
  

5.  Emergency Services:  Regional Response Interlocal Agreements with the Cities of 
Olive Branch and Southaven 

 
Board Attorney Tony Nowak said several years ago the County was approved for a grant 
to allow the purchase of equipment which would be used by the regional response team.  
He said that equipment is being shared with the cities of Olive Branch and Southaven.  
Mr. Nowak said the interlocal agreements to share the equipment with the cities have 
expired.  He said the city of Hernando would like to join in on this agreement and they 
have started paperwork to accomplish that.  He said, at this time, if the Board wishes to 
continue the association it is time to approve the new interlocal agreements with Olive 
Branch and Southaven, with the Hernando agreement being presented later.   
 
Supervisor Lee Caldwell made the motion and Supervisor Mark Gardner seconded the 
motion to approve interlocal agreements with the City of Olive Branch and the City of 
Southaven for sharing of equipment for the EMS Regional Response Team.  The motion 
passed by a vote as follows:           

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
 Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 
 

6.  Office of Finance & Accounting:  Supplemental Claims Docket 
 

a. Grants Administration:  Activation of Greenway Projects through the 2011 
MDOT Transportation Enhancement Grant ($800,000) 
 
Grants Administrator Tom Haysley said it is time to activate the 2011 MDOT 
Transportation Enhancement Grant Project.  Mr. Haysley said if the Board wishes to 
proceed, it would be proper to request the activation of the DeSoto County Greenways 
project to be funded through the Transportation Enhancement Grant Project and send 
certain information as requested and as detailed in Exhibit H.6.a. 
 
Supervisor Mark Gardner made the motion and Supervisor Lee Caldwell seconded the 
motion to activate the 2011 MDOT Transportation Enhancement Grant Project for 
DeSoto County Greenways and to authorize the Board President to sign the letter of 
request for activation of the project.  The motion passed by a vote as follows:  
         

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
 Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
See Exhibit H.6.a 
b. Consideration of Financing Application for Countywide Phone System and 
Authorization to Engage Butler-Snow to Issue Tax Opinion Letter 
 
Board Attorney Tony Nowak said he reviewed the lease purchase agreement in 
connection with financing of the county-wide phone system.  Mr. Nowak said some of 
the documents require DeSoto County to issue a tax opinion statement.  He said the only 
attorney he is aware of who is qualified to issue the tax opinion statement is Butler-
Snow.  Butler-Snow quoted an estimated cost of $7,500.00. 
 



 

_____ 11 03/19/2012 
J. M. 

County Administrator Michael Garriga said this is an unanticipated cost of financing for 
the phone system. 
 
Supervisor Lee Caldwell asked if there is money in the budget to cover this expenditure. 
Mr. Garriga said the cost of the project would be paid through savings over time. 
 
Mr. Garriga suggested holding this item over to allow the staff more time to get 
additional information. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin said he would be cautious about spending such a large amount 
of money without knowing the entire cost and savings. 
 
Mr. Garriga asked the Board if they would be open to an house financing option 
utilizing cash on hand and repaying the costs from the savings within the telephone 
services budget line. 
 
The Board instructed Mr. Garriga to gather more information on the issue and present an 
alternative proposal at the next meeting. 
 
Supervisor Mark Gardner made the motion and Supervisor Lee Caldwell seconded the 
motion to hold this item over until April 2 to allow more details to be gathered about the 
cost of financing and the cost associated with paying for the project up front.  The 
motion passed by a vote as follows:           

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
 Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
  
c. Inventory Control Dispositions-Preliminary:  Sheriff’s Department 
 
Inventory Control Clerk Charmaine McCool presented a disposition to allow the 
Sheriff’s Department to trade in ID Card Printer which is not working properly for a 
new system.  The current equipment would need to be removed from inventory as 
follows: 
 

ASSET 
#  DESCRIPTION  SERIAL #  REASON FOR DISPOSAL 

LOCATION AT 
PRELIMINARY 

38734  ID Card Printer  A8371025  Surplus for Trade In  Sheriff's Office 

 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Mark Gardner seconded the 
motion to approve trading in the Sheriff’s Department ID Card Printer and remove it 
from inventory.  The motion passed by a vote as follows:     
      

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 

   
d. Supplemental Claims Docket  
Finance Clerk Stephanie Hanks, and Chief Financial Officer Tom Arnold, of the Office 
of Finance and Accounting, presented the claims docket to the Board.  Ms. Hanks and 
Mr. Arnold read the items on the claims docket individually and the Board discussed 
these items. 
 
Supervisor Mark Gardner asked about the claim from Butler-Snow on page 10.  Mr. 
Arnold said it is for a bankruptcy and outside counsel was retained.  Board Attorney 
Tony Nowak said one of the matters of litigation involved a bankruptcy filing on 
Andrews Park Subdivision. 



 

_____ 12 03/19/2012 
J. M. 

 
Supervisor Gardner asked about the item on page 15 for “Muscle Racks” in the 
Department of Facilities Management.  Assistant Facilities Management Director Tony 
Nowak Martin said this is a racking system for shelving for the Health Department. 
 
Supervisor Gardner asked about the claim on page 16 for K.D. Roofing.  Mr. Garriga 
said the roof is for the new Forensics Laboratory in the building that was formerly 
occupied by the Law Library. 
 
Supervisor Gardner asked about the claim on page 19 for Jim Galgert.  Mr. Arnold said 
this claim is for registration for training for the County Veteran’s Officer. 
 
Supervisor Gardner asked about page 36 and the claim for North Mississippi Two Way 
Communications.  He said the County spent $21,890.00 for radios and programming.  
Sheriff Bill Rasco said this was for several radios in his department.  Vanessa Lynchard 
said if these were ordered on state contract, it is very likely the state contract required 
programming to be listed separately. 
 
Supervisor Gardner asked about page 65 and the claim for American Tire.  He 
questioned whether or not the County was changing their own tires on regular vehicles 
and not just heavy equipment.  Road Manager Russell Dorris said their department 
generally calls for service on all of their equipment.  Supervisor Gardner said if he has a 
flat tire on his County car on the way home, he would stop and change the tire himself.  
Supervisor Lee Caldwell said she knows how to change her own tire as well. 
 
Supervisor Lee Caldwell asked about the claim on page 12 for p Mini Storage.  She 
asked if this is the same claim paid two months ago for a storage unit.  Mr. Martin said 
yes.  He said almost everything in that unit is on inventory.  Once inventory disposition 
is complete the items can be scrapped and disposed which will eliminate that cost. 
 
Supervisor Caldwell asked about the claim on page 12 for Williams Scotsman.  Mr. 
Arnold said it is for a tractor trailer that the Sheriff’s Department uses for storage. 
 
Sheriff Rasco said these are storage units behind the jail where they store cleaning 
supplies, dry goods and canned goods.  He said the County has been renting these 
trailers for years and it would be better if they purchased them.  The Board discussed 
whether the units would be useful when the new jail is completed. 
 
Supervisor Caldwell asked about the claim on page 53 for AT&T.  Mr. Arnold said they 
break out State Agency phone bills because the State of Mississippi reimburses the 
County.  This one is for phones for DHS/Child Support. 
 
Supervisor Caldwell asked about page 56 for Harris Madden.  Mr. Arnold this for 
workers compensation bills are spread throughout the claims docket in various line 
items. 
 
Supervisor Caldwell asked about the claim on page 67 for internet services paid to the 
state for the Tax Collector’s Office.  IT Director John Mitchell said this is for the metro 
Ethernet links between Southaven and Olive Branch Tax Collector’s Office. 
 
Supervisor Caldwell asked about the claim on page 79 to the State of Mississippi.  Mr. 
Arnold explained that is for various court assessments and those have to be settled to the 
State Treasurer.  He said we combine the amounts and write one check to the State every 
month. 
 
Supervisor Harvey Lee said the previous questions answered his questions from the 
docket. 
 
In accordance with Section 19-13-31 and Section 19-11-23 of the Mississippi Code 
Annotated, Supervisor Lee Caldwell made the motion and Supervisor Mark Gardner 
seconded the motion to authorize the Chancery Clerk to pay the bills as presented by the 



 

_____ 13 03/19/2012 
J. M. 

Chief Financial Officer. The motion passed by a vote as follows:    
       

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 
   

7.  Office of Procurement 
 

a. Bids 
 
(1.) Administration Building Flooring Project 
 
Procurement Director Vanessa Lynchard said there was only one company who respond 
to the bid for removal of carpet from specific areas on the 1st floor of the Administration 
Building and to replace it with thin-set terrazzo flooring.  Vanessa said the bid is from 
American Tile Company and the total amount is $55,291.00. 
 
Supervisor Harvey Lee asked if the floors require wax.  Assistant Facilities Management 
Director Tony Martin said yes.  Mr. Martin said the wax helps protect the flooring and it 
is not a typical type of wax. 
 
Supervisor Lee Caldwell said that is a lot of money.  She said when she walked both 
corridors it did not look that bad. 
 
Supervisor Lee said he walked the building and he did see places in the carpet where it 
is coming up from the floor.  Supervisor Lee said he is concerned for people’s safety in 
those areas.  That could be cut out and replaced especially in the high traffic areas. 
 
Supervisor Caldwell said she too is concerned about safety in the worst areas where the 
carpet is coming up from the floor.  She suggested doing those areas first and not all at 
one time. 
 
County Administrator Michael Garriga said there is money in the budget for this phase 
of the project. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin said maybe it could be postponed for a year or two. 
 
Mr. Garriga said, for months he has heard that the appearance of the County’s buildings 
and grounds are not up to standard.  He said the administration building has received a 
lot of traffic in the last 12 years since it was opened and new flooring was needed.  He 
mentioned that a cheaper approach to the flooring could be an option such as new 
carpet, but a hard surface such as terrazzo would be more economical for long term 
maintenance.  
 
Supervisor Lee Caldwell made the motion and Supervisor Harvey Lee seconded the 
motion to approve the bid for replacement flooring for the DeSoto County 
Administration Building in connection with bid file number 12-151-002 in the amount 
of $55,291.00 with American Tile Company.  The motion failed by a vote as follows: 
 

Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------NO 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------NO 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 

 Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 
Supervisor Lee Caldwell asked if the dissents were because of the cost of the flooring.   
 
Supervisor Gardner said his dissent is because the carpet on the first floor does not 



 

_____ 14 03/19/2012 
J. M. 

appear to be in bad condition. He said he not ready to spend that much money on this 
project. 
 
Supervisor Medlin said he did not vote to solicit bids for the flooring because the cost 
estimates were too high.  
 
Supervisor Lee said he has seen a couple of places in the carpet where it is unraveling.  
He asked if the Board members would approve having that part cut out and replaced.  
Also, there are a few places that cleaning the carpet would get rid of the stains. 
 
Supervisor Caldwell said she is concerned about safety of people tripping on the carpet. 
 She said she knows we cannot replace carpet in the entire building so she would support 
doing it a little at a time. 
 
Supervisor Medlin asked how was budgeted for the work.  Mr. Garriga said $250,000 
was budgeted for re-flooring the entire Administration Building but recommended doing 
only the first floor as this year. 
 
Supervisor Medlin said he did not want to spend that much money. 
 
Ms. Lynchard said the bidder commented when the bids were opened that if they had 
known they were the only bidder they would have increased their price.  She said it is 
very likely the next time the flooring is bid the County will pay more money. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin said he would like to start by not seeing dirt and mud on the 
stairs and in the corners of the building when he arrives for Board meetings early on 
Monday mornings.  He said we have enough employees and they need to take care of 
their business.  Mr. Garriga agreed that the custodial staff is not operating to provide the 
best possible service and the Facilities Management staff was working to improve 
performance. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Harvey Lee seconded the 
motion to reconsider the previous vote for the bid on replacement flooring.  The motion 
passed by a vote as follows:           

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 

 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Lee Caldwell seconded the 
motion to accept the lowest and best bid from American Tile Company in the amount of 
$55,291.00 to remove carpet from the first floor of the Administration Building and 
replace with thin-set terrazzo flooring.  The motion passed by a vote as follows:  
         

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------NO 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 

See Exhibit H.7.a.(1) 
 
(2.) Semi-Annual Jail Food Supplies  
 
Procurement Director Vanessa Lynchard said jail food is bid twice a year at the DeSoto 
County Jail.  She said the bid has been an effort to constantly chase the market to get the 
most competition and the best bids for the Sheriff’s Department.  She said this year the 
food will be bid on a six month term with a six month right to renew. 
 



 

_____ 15 03/19/2012 
J. M. 

Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Harvey Lee seconded the 
motion to accept the semi-annual bid for jail food supplies in connection with bid file 
number 12-200-003 and as detailed in Exhibit H.7.a.(2).  The motion passed by a vote as 
follows:           

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 

See Exhibit H.7.a.(2) 
 
(3.) Re-Bid Corrugated Culverts 54” – 96” 
 
Procurement Director Vanessa Lynchard asked that this item be removed from the 
Agenda.  Vanessa said the Board of Supervisors acted on this bid award in a previous 
Board meeting and no further action is necessary.   
 
(4.) Re-Bid Cemented Treated Base  
 
Procurement Director Vanessa Lynchard said only one bid was received for cement 
treated base when they initially solicited bids.  A re-bid was solicited and there were 
more bidders. 
 
At the recommendation of the Department of Procurement, Supervisor Jessie Medlin 
made the motion and Supervisor Lee Caldwell seconded the motion to approve the 
recommendation for cement treated base as follows and award the bid to APAC 
Tennessee with a first alternate to Standard Construction: 
 
BID ITEM:  Re‐Bid ‐ Cement Treated Base BID FILE NUMBER:  12‐156‐002

BID OPENING DATE: February 29, 2012 BID OPENING TIME:  2:00 p.m.

ITEM DESCRIPTION

 APAC‐

TENNESSEE, 

INC. 

 STANDARD 

CONSTRUCTION 

METRO 

MATERIALS P/TON ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

6% Cement Content Minimum 750 ps i  mix $             24.50  $                        27.50  No Bid Standard: Gravel  based CTB (conta ins   no l imestone)

10% Cement Content

Minimum 500 ps i  mix s/10% 

l imestone $             23.50  No Bid  No Bid

Flowable  Fi l l No Bid  No Bid  No Bid

1% Calcium No Bid  No Bid  No Bid

Wi l  your company be  an a lternate  bidder? YES  YES 

YES  No  APAC: Al l  prices  are  FOB the  plant. Del ivery wil l  cost additio

RECOMMENDATION: APAC‐TENNESSEE, INC.

ALTERNATE AWARD: STANDARD CONSTRUCTION

ITEM DESCRIPTION FY11 PRICE  FY12 PRICE  BUDGET IMPACT

6% Cement Content Minimum 750 ps i  mix $             24.50  $                        24.50 

10% Cement Content

Minimum 500 ps i  mix w/10% 

l imestone $             23.50  No Bid 

Flowable  Fi l l No Bid  No Bid 

1% Calcium No Bid  No Bid 

Recommendation: APAC‐TENNESSEE, INC.

 *No Change in 

Ton Price from 

FY2011* 

1st Al ternate: STANDARD CONSTRUCTION

BUDGET IMPACT COMPARED TO FY11 BID

Wil l  you sel l  to other jurisdictions  at the  county bid price?

 
 
The motion passed by a vote as follows:           

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 

See Exhibit H.7.a.(4) 
  
(5.) Ready Mix Concrete 
 



 

_____ 16 03/19/2012 
J. M. 

Vanessa Lynchard presented results of the bid tabulation for ready mix concrete inn 
connection with bid file number 12-156-021.     
 
Supervisor Harvey Lee made the motion and Supervisor Mark Gardner seconded the 
motion to approve the recommendation for ready mix concrete as follows and to award 
the bid to MMC Materials, Inc., first alternate to Metro Materials and second alternate to 
Memphis Ready Mix: 
 

ITEM  Memphis Ready Mix    
1280 Walker Street 

 MMC Materials, Inc.       
Robinsonville, MS   

MMC Materials, Inc.    
Coldwater, MS  

MMC Materials, Inc.    
Horn Lake, MS  

MMC Materials, Inc.    
Olive Branch, MS  

 MMC Materials, Inc.    
Colierville, TN  

 Metro Materials 

REGULAR ROCK

     3000#  Mix  $                           95.00   $                        78.00 78.00$                        78.00$                        78.00$                         78.00$                         87.00$               
     3500# Mix  $                    97.50  $                        80.50 80.50$                        80.50$                        80.50$                         80.50$                         89.00$               
     4000# Mix  $                  100.00  $                        83.00 83.00$                        83.00$                        83.00$                         83.00$                         91.00$               

LIMESTONE

     3000# Mix  $                    99.00  $                        82.00 82.00$                        82.00$                        82.00$                         82.00$                         88.00$               
     3500# Mix  $                  101.50  $                        84.50 84.50$                        84.50$                        84.50$                         84.50$                         90.00$               
     

REGULAR ROCK 
CONCRETE MIX
     3500#  $                    97.50  $                        80.50 80.50$                        80.50$                        80.50$                         80.50$                         89.00$               

PEA GRAVEL

     3500# Mix  $                  101.50  $                        84.50 84.50$                        84.50$                        84.50$                         84.50$                         90.00$               

PUMP MIX

     3500# Mix  $                  109.00  $                        85.00 85.00$                        85.00$                        85.00$                         85.00$                         89.00$               

FIBER  $                     5.00  $                          5.00 5.00$                          5.00$                          5.00$                           5.00$                           6.00$                 
1% CALCIUM 
ADDITIVE

 $                     3.00  $                          3.00 
3.00$                          3.00$                          3.00$                           3.00$                           5.00$                 

2% CALCIUM 
ADDITIVE

 $                     6.00  $                          6.00 
6.00$                          6.00$                          6.00$                           6.00$                           10.00$               

FLOWABLE FILL  $                           76.00   $                                 68.00  68.00$                        68.00$                        68.00$                         68.00$                         66.00$               
HEATED WATER  $                             6.00   $                                   5.00  5.00$                          5.00$                          5.00$                           5.00$                           7.00$                 
CHILLED WATER  $                             6.00   N/A  N/A N/A N/A N/A 7.00$                 
ICE  $                           12.00   .35 lb.  .35 lb. .35 lb. .35 lb. .35 lb. .60 lb.

 $                  100.00  $                                         -   ‐$                            ‐$                            ‐$                             ‐$                            85.00$               
 (less than 5 yards  (less than 5 yards)  (less than 5 yards)  (less than 5 yards)  (less than 5 yards)  (less than 5 yards)  (less than 6 yards) 

MINIMUM LOAD 
CHARGE

 Per Cubic Yard 

 
 
The motion passed by a vote as follows:           

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 

See Exhibit H.7.a.(5) 
 
b. Contracts 
 
(1.)  Youth Court-ADAPTS Electronic Monitoring(AEM)-Term 1 Year 
 
Vanessa Lynchard presented a contract with ADAPTS Electronic Monitoring.  Vanessa 
said it is for electronic bracelets used in Youth Court.  Vanessa recommended approval 
of the contract for consideration by the Board of Supervisors. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Harvey Lee seconded the 
motion to approve the contract with ADAPTS Electronic Monitoring (AEM) for a term 
of one year according to the terms listed in Exhibit H.b.(1) for electronic bracelets used 
in Youth Court. The motion passed by a vote as follows:     
      

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 

See Exhibit H.7.b.(1) 
 
(2.) Chancery Clerk’s Office-Maintenance for Rayco Copiers 
 
Vanessa Lynchard presented a contract with Rayco Inc. for copiers in Chancery Court.  



 

_____ 17 03/19/2012 
J. M. 

She recommended approval of the contract for the remainder of the term, which is set to 
expire April, 2013. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Harvey Lee seconded the 
motion to approve the contract with Rayco Inc. for copiers in the Chancery Clerk’s 
Office according to the terms detailed in Exhibit H.7.b.(2).  The motion passed by a vote 
as follows:           

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 

See Exhibit H.7.b.(2) 
 
  

8.  Establishment of Committee on Broadband/High Speed Internet Service in the 
Unincorporated County  

 
Supervisor Lee Caldwell welcomed the Director of Extension Services Joy Anderson, 
and Kourtney Hollingsworth the Regional Broadband Coordinator in DeSoto County to 
the Board of Supervisors meeting.  Supervisor Caldwell said one of the main complaints 
that she heard while campaigning, was lack of internet service in parts of the County.  
Supervisor Caldwell said as teacher it is very important to have internet service.  She 
said last year, the Board of Supervisors discussed the problem with Public Service 
Commissioner Brandon Presley.  Supervisor Caldwell said the Board wants to hear from 
the broadband study that is being done in our area.  She said the County may want to 
consider partnering to get internet access throughout the County. 
 
Ms. Hollingsworth said the issue of internet access has been under study for 11 counties. 
She said DeSoto County has more people requesting internet access than any of the 
other counties in the study.  Ms. Hollingsworth said she had an internet specialist to look 
into that area of the County.  A lot of areas have trees and hills which affects internet 
service. Based on that information, something different would need to be done to gain 
access for those areas.  Ms. Hollingsworth said fiber optic is not being installed in new 
neighborhoods during construction.  Ms. Hollingsworth said she would like to take a 
model from Coahoma County where they have WiMax for internet service.  She said 
there are a lot of options for financing WiMax.  She said, after a certain number of 
years, a person could pay $10.00 to retain the service.  Ms. Hollingsworth said with 
something like this service, you could reach into the community.  She said the Delta 
Regional Authority is managing the Coahoma Project. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin said with more people using cell phones does it hurt the efforts 
to have fiber optic throughout the County.  She said WiMax is fiber optic that is tower 
based and stronger than satellites.   
 
Supervisor Mark Gardner asked who the provider is in Coahoma County.  Ms. 
Hollingsworth said that DRA applied for the grant and the county is the provider. 
 
Supervisor Medlin asked how many calls Ms. Hollingsworth has received from DeSoto 
County.  Ms. Hollingsworth said they received over 200 calls in the first month.  She 
said they have received more calls from Nesbit, new subdivisions on larger lots and high 
value homes.  She said fiber optic goes to the street but not into the subdivisions. 
 
Supervisor Caldwell suggested Planning Director Ted Garrod, IT Director John 
Mitchell, Supervisor Mark Gardner, Grant Writer Tom Haysley, and County 
Administrator and herself to be on the committee to address the issue throughout DeSoto 
County.  She said the County needs to plan ahead when approving new subdivisions and 
the new Planning Director, Mr. Garrod can help with that because he has past 
experience in that area.   
 



 

_____ 18 03/19/2012 
J. M. 

Ms. Hollingsworth said they would like to participate in the committee effort.  DeSoto 
County is the second fastest growing county other counties would look to DeSoto 
County when they face growth challenges.  This is a tremendous opportunity for the 
DeSoto County.   
 
Supervisor Medlin asked if there was an estimated cost to the homeowner.  Ms. 
Hollingsworth said she has talked to many providers and they are trying to find the best 
option to provide service and they are looking at costs as well. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Harvey Lee seconded the 
motion to appoint Supervisor Mark Gardner, to investigate and make recommendations 
for County-wide internet access coverage and to appoint Supervisor Lee Caldwell, 
Planning Director Ted Garrod, IT Director John Mitchell, Grant Writer Tom Haysley, 
and County Administrator Michael Garriga, Regional Broadband Coordinator Kourtney 
Hollingsworth and Extension Director Joy Anderson to the committee to bring back 
recommendations to the Board of Supervisors.  The motion passed by a vote as follows: 
          

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 
Ms. Hollingsworth said at the end of March, she would be moving to Tate County.  She 
said that DeSoto County is out of physical space in the building due to adding an 
employee and Tate County has space to accommodate the Broadband Project. 
 
Supervisor Lee Caldwell asked if the County could look for office space to accommodate 
the Broadband Project, would Ms. Hollingsworth be willing to stay in DeSoto County.  
Ms. Hollingsworth said yes, she would be willing to stay. 
 
  

9.  Consideration of County Ordinance Regulating Firearms in the Unincorporated      
 County 

 
Sheriff Bill Rasco, said from October to date, the Sheriff’s Department has received 163 
calls regarding guns being shot in residential neighborhoods.  Sheriff Rasco said at least 
three houses were shot into by people target practicing.  Sheriff Rasco said when they 
receive these complaints, three or more deputy vehicles may respond to that complaint 
for safety reasons.  He said there have been two incidents on Byhalia Road and one on 
Oak Grove.  Sheriff Rasco said when someone is target practicing they need to think 
about where the bullets may land. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin said he did not think this Board wants to deter hunting at all.  
The problems are resulting from target practicing.  When people shoot four or five hours 
at a time, it is scary and annoying for others in the neighborhood.  Supervisor Medlin said 
it is hard to shoot safely on an acre of land.  He said most of the problems do not relate to 
hunters.   
 
Sheriff Rasco said people are target practicing regularly throughout the County.  He said 
they receive some calls at 11:00 p.m. at night.  
 
Supervisor Harvey Lee said he would like to talk more about this issue.  Supervisor Lee 
said he understands the Sheriff and Supervisor Medlin’s concerns, but he has some issues 
and would like to talk more about it before making a decision. 
 
Supervisor Harvey Lee made a motion to table the matter to get more information and 
discuss and analyze the situation with shooting firearms on residential property and bring 
it back to the Board for consideration at a future meeting.  Supervisor Lee Caldwell 
seconded the motion the motions.  The motion passed by a vote as follows:  
         



 

_____ 19 03/19/2012 
J. M. 

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 
 

10.  Department of Road Management:  Finding of Fact 7428, 7464, and 7482 Fox Creek 
Drive 

      
Road Manager Russell Dorris presented photographs to the Board of Supervisors 
regarding a finding of fact at 7428, 7464 and 7482 Fox Creek Drive in Olive Branch.  
The photographs showed damage to the private property associated with drainage and 
erosion, affecting the health, safety and welfare of the public.  Mr. Dorris said the 
estimated cost to do the repairs is $1,001.00. 
 
At the recommendation of the Road Manager and based on the facts and pictures 
presented, Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Harvey Lee 
seconded the motion to authorize the Road Department to make drainage and erosion 
repairs in connection with authority under Mississippi Code section 19-5-92 on property 
located at 7428, 7464 and 7482 Fox Creek Drive in Olive Branch at an estimated cost of 
$1,001.00.  The motion passed by a vote as follows:       
    

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 
See Exhibit H.10 
 

 
I.   EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

The executive session portion of these minutes is recorded under the portion of the minutes 
called “Executive Session”. 

 
 
J.  OTHER ISSUES 

 
1. Animal Shelter-Water Well  
 

Supervisor Lee Caldwell said it was her understanding the water pressure at the Animal 
Shelter is very poor.  She requested getting cost estimates of a new well to allow the 
Board to make a decision on the issue. 
Supervisor Lee Caldwell made the motion and Supervisor Harvey Lee seconded the 
motion to solicit bids for pricing for water well at the DeSoto County Animal Shelter and 
to check into all costs associated with the well and bring the information back to the 
Board of Supervisors.  The motion passed by a vote as follows:    
       

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 
 

2.  Transportation Bill 
 

Supervisor Lee Caldwell said the transportation bill has been stalled in Congress.  She 
said the County and the State of Mississippi have contracts out that are contingent on this 



 

_____ 20 03/19/2012 
J. M. 

legislation.   
 
Supervisor Lee Caldwell made the motion and Supervisor Harvey Lee seconded the 
motion to write a letter of encouragement to the Congressman supporting the 
transportation bill and to push forward with its passage.  The motion passed by a vote as 
follows:           

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 
 

3.  Planning Director 
 

The Board of Supervisors recognized the new DeSoto Planning Director, Ted Garrod, and 
thanked him for his presence at the meeting. 
 
 

4.  Lawn Care Service 
 

Procurement Director Vanessa Lynchard said there was an issue with how the bid printed 
out for lawn care service and it looked like a smaller number.  Vanessa presented a new 
copy of the bid and noted column C for the Sheriff’s Deputy to take care of the lawn at 
the SID Facility.  Vanessa said she contacted all the bidders this morning about how the 
bid printed.  She said Affinity Lawn Scapes is still the lowest overall bid.  Vanessa said 
that Brite Solutions is the lowest and best bid for the SID Facility. 
 
Supervisor Jessie made the motion and Supervisor Harvey Lee seconded the motion to 
reconsider the prior bid award of lawn care services from March 19th.   The motion 
passed by a vote as follows:           

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 
Supervisor Harvey Lee made the motion and Supervisor Lee Caldwell seconded the 
motion to award Categories A and B to Affinity Lawn Scapes as follows: 
 

Bidder

MONTHLY YEARLY MONTHLY YEARLY

Affinity Lawn Scapes 5,430.00$                65,160.00$            1,000.00$             12,000.00$          

Brite Solutions 6,458.40$                77,500.80$            2,106.00$             25,272.00$          

Chandler's Lawn 

Service 6,045.00$                72,540.00$            1,425.00$             17,100.00$          

Landscape Services 

Group 8,729.61$                104,755.32$          3,011.41$             36,136.92$          

The Landcare Group 6,970.00$                83,640.00$            1,873.00$             22,476.00$          

Lawns (Excluding Courthouse , 

Administration & Jail)

Court House & Administration 

Buildings 

A B

  
The motion passed by a vote as follows:           

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 



 

_____ 21 03/19/2012 
J. M. 

 
Supervisor Harvey Lee made the motion and Supervisor Lee Caldwell seconded the 
motion to approve awarding the lawn care contract for Category C of the bid for lawn 
care services to Brite Solutions in the amount of $6,480.00 annually.  The motion passed 
by a vote as follows:           

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Harvey Lee seconded the 
motion to approve contracts with Affinity Lawn Scapes and Brite Solutions for lawn care 
services at DeSoto County buildings as fully described in Exhibits J.4.  The motion 
passed by a vote as follows:           

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 
 
 

Supervisor made Jessie Medlin the motion and Supervisor Lee Caldwell seconded the motion to 
recess the meeting until April 2, 2012 at 9:00 a.m.  The motion passed by a vote as follows: 
          

           Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Mark Gardner --------------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------ABSENT 
   Supervisor Lee Caldwell----------------YES 
  Supervisor Harvey Lee------------------YES 

 
THIS the 19th day of March 2012, these minutes have been read and approved by the DeSoto 
County Board of Supervisors. 
 
             
       ____________________________________ 

Jessie Medlin, President 
DeSoto County Board of Supervisors 


